














COUNT TWENTY

FALSE STATEMENTS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
18 U.S.C. §§ 1014 and 2

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 3, 4, 7, 10, 16(f) through 16(g), 16(i), 39 through 45 and Overt Acts
58 through 95 of Count One are incorporated here throughout by reference.

2. On or about January 19, 2012, in the City of Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

. CHAKA FATTAH, SR.,
HERBERT VEDERMAN, and
BONNIE BOWSER,

aided and abetted by one another and others, knowingly made and caused to be made to CUMA
false statements for the purpose of influencing the actions of CUMA, a federally insured financial
institution, upon a $320,000 mortgage for defendants FATTAH and Person E as part of the
purchase of a Poconos vacation home. FATTAH claimed, among other false statéments, that
FATTAH and Person E had the independent financial resources to qualify for the mortgage and
that an $18,000 wire transfer from VEDERMAN into FATTAH’s bank account represented the
proceeds of the private sale of Person E’s car to VEDERMAN. In fact, FATTAH, VEDERMAN,
BOWSER, and Person E knew that no car sale had taken place and FATTAH and Person E still
possessed, drove, titled, and continued to insure the car after the $18,000 payment was made, and
VEDERMAN never took possession of the vehicle.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1014 and 2.
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COUNT TWENTY-ONE

FALSIFICATION OF RECORDS
18 U.S.C. §§ 1519 and 2

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 3, 4, 7, 10, 16(f) through 16(g), 16(i), 39 through 45 and Overt Acts 58
through 95 -of Count One are incorporated here throughout by reference.

2. On or about January 17, 2012, through on or about January 19, 2012, in the City of
Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants

CHAKA FATTAH, SR.,
HERBERT VEDERMAN, and
BONNIE BOWSER,

aided and abetted by one another and others, knowingly concealed, covered up, falsified and made
false entries in documents, specifically, a “MOTOR VEHICLE BILL OF SALE” with the intent to
| impede, obstruct, and influence the investigation and proper administration of & matter, and in
relation to and contemplation of such matter, which was within the jurisdiction of a department or
agency of the United States, specifically, the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”’) and the Federal

Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”).

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1519 and 2.

-72 -



COUNT TWENTY-TWO

MONEY LAUNDERING
18 U.S.C. §§ 1957 and 2

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
1. Paragraphs 3, 4, 7, 10, 16(f) through 16(g). 16(i), 39 through 45 and Overt Acts 58
through 95 of Count One are iricorporated here throughout by reference.
2. On or about January 17, 2012, through on or about January 19, 2012, in the City of
Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants
CHAKA FATTAH, SR.,

- HERBERT VEDERMAN, and
BONNIE BOWSER,

aided and abetted by one another and others, knowingly engaged in, and attempted to engage in,
and willfully caused, a monetary transaction affecting interstate commerce in criminally derived
property of a value greater than $10,000, described more fully below, and such property was
derived from a specified unlawful activity, that is: a scheme to commit bribery, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Section 201:

Date Amount Monetary Transaction

January 24, 2012 | $25,000 Transfer from Chaka Fattah, Sr.’s Wright Patman account
to Attorney N. A. B.’s escrow account for purchase of
Poconos Property.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1957 and 2.
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COUNT TWENTY-THREE

MONEY LAUNDERING CONSPIRACY
| 18 U.S.C. § 1956(h)

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
1. Paragraphs 3, 4, 7, 10, 16(f) through 16(g), 16(i), 39 through 45 and Overt Acts 58
through 95 of Count One are incorporated here throughout by reference.
2. Paragraph 2 of Count Twenty-Two is incorporafed here throughout by reference.
3. On or about January 17, 2012 through on or about January 19, 2012, in the City of
.Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants
CHAKA FATTAH, SR.,
" HERBERT VEDERMAN, and
BONNIE BOWSER,
knowingly conspired and agreed together and with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury
to the transfer of the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is: a scheme to commit
bribery in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 201, and then knowingly engaged
and caused another to engage in monetary transactions in criminally derived property that was of
“avalue greater than $10,000.00 and was derived from said specified unlawful activity, and that

affected interstate and foreign commerce.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h).
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COUNTS TWENTY-FOUR THROUGH TWENTY-SIX

WIRE FRAUD
18 U.S.C. § 1343

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 3, 6, 9, 11, 16(h) through 16(i), 46 through 48, and Overt Acts 96
through 98 of Count One are incorporated here throughout by reference.

2. From in or around May 2012 and continuing through in or around January 2014, in
the City of Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendant

KAREN NICHOLAS

knowingly devised and intended to devise a scheme and artifice to defraud, and to obtain money
and property by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises.

Manner and Means

3. The manner and means by which NICHOLAS would and did carry out the scheme
included the following, among others:

a. Prior to October 2012, NICHOLAS submitted and caused to be submitted
to NOAA false grant applications and décuments claiming that NOAA’s funding would be used
for a future Conference.

b. After October 2012, NICHOLAS submitted and caused to be submitted to
NOAA false documentation claiming that NOAA’s grant funds had been used as intended on a
Conference held in October 2012.

Misuse of the NOAA Grant Funds

4, On or about March 14, 2013, EAA received and NICHOLAS began to use

NOAA'’s grant funds on various expenses wholly unrelated to any proposed October 2012
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National Conference on Higher Education, including payments to NICHOLAS, Naylor, and an

attorney representing NICHOLAS. Those payments include the following:

services” and deposited by NICHOLAS on or about
June 13, 2013

Approximate Payment Amount
Date '
March 13, 2013 Check No. 12429 drawn on EAA’s operating account -
(in anticipation of | made payable to NICHOLAS for “Admin & Exec $2,000
NOAA funds) services” and deposited by NICHOLAS on or about
March 14, 2013
March 13, 2013 Check no. 12434 drawn on EAA’s operating account
(in anticipation of | to Naylor’s SLA which was deposited by Naylor and $20,000
NOAA funds) posted to EAA’s operating account on or about March '
19, 2013
April 1, 2013 Check No. 12456 drawn on EAA’s operating account
made payable to NICHOLAS for “Admin & Exec $3,000
services” and deposited by NICHOLAS on or about
April 1, 2013
April 24,2013 Check No. 12463 drawn on EAA’s operating account
made payable to NICHOLAS for “Admin & Exec $4,500
services” and deposited by NICHOLAS on or about
April 24,2013
May 10, 2013 Check No. 12485 drawn on EAA’s operating account
made payable to NICHOLAS and deposited by $3,400
NICHOLAS on or about May 13,2013
May 23, 2013 Check No. 12499 drawn on EAA’s operating account
made payable to NICHOLAS and deposited by $1,000
Nicholas on or about May 23, 2013
May 24, 2013 Check No. 12509 drawn on EAA’s operating account
made payable to NICHOLAS for “Admin & Exec $4,500
services” and deposited by NICHOLAS on or about
June 25, 2013
June 1, 2013 Check No. 12504 drawn on EAA’s operating account
made payable to NICHOLAS for “Admin & Exec $4,500
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Approximate
Date

Payment

Amount

July 3, 2013

Check No. 12520 drawn on EAA’s operating account
made payable to NICHOLAS for “July 2013” and
deposited by Nicholas on or about July 3, 2013

$4,500

July 3, 2013

Check No. 12523 drawn on EAA’s operating account
made payable to the criminal defense attorney
representing NICHOLAS and deposited by the
attorney on or about July 9, 2013

$10.000

S. On or about each of the dates set forth below, in the City of Philadelphia, in the

Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant

KAREN NICHOLAS,

for the purpose of executing the scheme described above, and attempting to do so, transmitted and

caused to be transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce the following

wire communications in the form of writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds as set forth, each

transmission constituting a separate count:

application for federal grant funds for a National
Conference on Higher Education, the dates of which were
not specified.

Count Interstate Wire Communication Approximate
(Electronic Communications) Date
24 NICHOLAS submitted to NOAA via email EAA’s formal | May 11,2012 -
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Count Interstate Wire Communication Approximate
(Electronic Communications) Date

25 NICHOLAS submitted to NOAA via email a revised July 10, 2012
Project Description for the National Conference on Higher
Education which excluded from the Conference budget
meal purchases contained in EAA’s first submission after
NOAA advised NICHOLAS that grant funds could not be
used for purchasing food, and which specified that the
Conference was to be held on October 19 through 21, 2012,
in Philadelphia.

26 NICHOLAS submitted to NOAA via email the selection :
criteria for student participants purportedly attending the | August 30, 2012
October 2012 Conference on Higher Education

6. To further conceal the scheme, on or about November 7; 2013, NICHOLAS
electronically submitted to NOAA a Federal financial report which certified, falsely, that EAA
had spent the grant funds on an October 2012 Conference.

7. To further conceal the scheme, on or about January 8, 2014, NICHOLAS
electronically submitted to NOAA EAA’s “FINAL” Performance Progress Report, backdated
April 3, 2013, which falsely described in detail a Conference on Higher Education purportedly
held “Friday, October 19 through Sunday, October 21, 2012 featuring “Congressman Chaka
Fattah” as a “keynote speaker.”

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.
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COUNT TWENTY-SEVEN

MONEY LAUNDERING
18 U.S.C. § 1957

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 3, 6, 9, 11, 16(h) through 16(i), 46 through 48, and Overt Acts 96
through 98 of Count One are incorporated here throughout by reference.

2. Paragraphs 3 through 7 of Counts Twenty-Four through Twenty-Six are
incorporated here throughout by reference.

3. On or about March 13, 2013 through on or about March 19, 2013, in the City of
Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendant

KAREN NICHOLAS

knowingly engaged in, and attempted to engage in, and willfully caused, a monetary transaction
affecting interstate commerce in criminally derived property of a value greater than $10,000,
described more fully below, and such property was derived from a specified unlawful activity,
that is, a scheme to commit wire fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1343:

Approximate Amount Monetary Transaction
Date

‘ Issued check no. 12434 drawn on EAA’s operating account
March 13,2013 | $20,000 to Naylor’s SLA which was deposited by Naylor and posted
to EAA’s operating account on or about March 19, 2013

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1957.
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COUNT TWENTY-EIGHT

FALSIFICATION OF RECORDS
18 U.S.C. § 1519

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 3, 6, 9, 11, 16(h), 46 through 48, and Overt Acts 96 through 98 of Count
One are incorporated here throughout by reference.

2. Paragraphs 3 through 7 of Counts Twenty-Four through Twenty-Six are
incorporated here throughout By reference.

3. On or about November 7, 2013, in the City of Philadelphia, in the Eastern District
of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendant

KAREN NICHOLAS,

knowingly concealed, covered up, falsified, and made false entries in documents, specifically, a
financial report transmitted to NOAA which falsely certified that she had used NOAA’s grant
funds for a Conference on Higher Education purportedly held in October 2012, with the intent to
impede, obstruct, and influence the investigation and proper administration of a matter, and in
relation to and contemplation of such matter, which was within the jurisdiction of a debartment or
agency of the United States, specifically, the U.S. Department of Commerce and the Federal
Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”).

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1519.
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COUNT TWENTY-NINE

FALSIFICATION OF RECORDS
18 U.S.C. § 1519

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 3, 6, 9, 11, 16(h) through 16(i), 42 through 44, and Overt Acts 96
through 98 of Count One are incorporated here throughout by reference.

2. Paragraphs 3 through 7 of Counts Twenty-Four through Twenty-Six are
incorporated here throughout by reference.

3. Paragraph 3 of Count Twenty-Seven is incorporated here throughout by reference.

4. On or about January 8, 2014, in the City of Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendant

KAREN NICHOLAS,

knowingly concealed, covered up, falsified, and made false entries in documents, specifically,
EAA’s “FINAL” Performance Progress Report, backdated to April 3, 2013, to NOAA, which
falsely described in detail a Conference on Higher Education purportedly held “Friday, October
19 through Sunday, October 21, 20127 and featured as a keynote speaker “Congressman Chaka
Fattah” with the intent to impede, obstruct, and influence the investigation and proper |
administration of a matter, and in relation to and contemplation of such matter, which was within
the jurisdiction of a department or agency of the United States, specifically, the U.S. Department
of Commerce and the Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”).

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1519.
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NOTICE OF FORFEITURE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
1. As a result of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Sections
1956, and 1957 as set forth in this Indictment, the defendants,
CHAKA FATTAH, SR,,
HERBERT VEDERMAN,
KAREN NICHOLAS, and
BONNIE BOWSER
shall forfeit to the United States of America any property, real or personal, involved in such
violation(s), and any property traceable to such property, including, but not limited to, the sum of
$38,000. If any of the property described above, as a result of any act or omission of the
defendants:
(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
(©) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;
(d) has been substantially diminished in value; or
(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided
without difficulty,
it is the intent of the United Stétes, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b),
incorporating Title 21, United States Code, Section 85 3(p), to seek forfeiture of any other

property of the defendant(s) up to the value of the property subject to forfeiture.

All pursuant to Ti’de 18, United States Code, Section 982.
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SECOND NOTICE OF FORFEITURE
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
1. As a result of the violation(s) of Title 18, United States Code, Sections
1014, 1341, 1343, and 1344, set forth in this indictment, defendants,
CHAKA FATTAH, SR.,
HERBERT VEDERMAN,
ROBERT BRAND,
KAREN NICHOLAS, and
BONNIE BOWSER
shall forfeit to the United States of America any property, real or personal, that constitutes or is
derived from proceeds traceable to such property, inclilding, but not limited to, the sum of
$764,663.52.
2. If any of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or
omission of the defendant(s):
(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;
(d) has been substantially diminished in Vaiue; or
(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided

without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b),

k forfeiture of any other

[ 55303

[y}

incorporating Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to se
property of the defendant(s) up to the value of the property subject to forfeiture.
All pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c) and Title 18, United

States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C).
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THIRD NOTICE OF FORFEITURE (RICO FORFEITURE)
1. As a result of the violation of Title 18 United States Code, Section, 1962 set forth
in this Indictment, the defendants,
CHAKA FATTAH, SR,,
HERBERT VEDERMAN,
ROBERT BRAND,

KAREN NICHOLAS, and
BONNIE BOWSER

shall forfeit to the United States of America:
(é) any interest acquired and maintained in violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1962;

(b) any interest in, security of, claims against, or property or contractual rights
of any kind, which afford a source of influence over, any enterprise established, operated,
controlled, conducted, and participated in the conduct of such violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1962,

(c) any property constituting or derived from proceeds obtained, directly and
indirectly, from such racketeering violationactivity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 1962, which property is subject to forfeiture to the United States pursuant to Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1963(a)(3), including, but not limited to the ;Q,um of $769,973.52.

2. If any of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or
omission of the defendant(s):’

£ rannet o 1acat
L Luwl &l

(a) cannot exercige of due diligence;

(b)  has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
(©) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

(d)  has been substantially diminished in value; or
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(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided
without difficulty;
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 1963(m), to

seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendant(s) up to the value of the property subject to

forfeiture.

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 1963.

A TRUE BILL:
FOREPERSON
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ZANE DAVID MEMEGER

United States Attorney Eirst Aikistant U.S. Attorney
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